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lndependent Audrtors Report

To the Members of Fractal Analytics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fractal Analytics Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as "the Group") and its associate, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial
statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statemenis give the information
required bythe CompaniesAct,20l3 ("Act") in the mannerso required and give a true and fairview in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group and its associate as at 31 March 2023, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

14th Floo.. Cenlral I Wng and Norlh C Vving, Nesco lT Park 4, Nesco
Cenler. Weslern Express Highway. Goregaon (Easl). Mumbai - 400063

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifols
Responsibilities for the Audit of fhe Consolidaled Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute
of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the "Other Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Other lnformation

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's directors' report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

Regislered Office:

BSR&Co {a
Limiled Lrabilily

partnershrp lim wilh Registralion
Parlnership wilh LLP Regisl.ation

No. 8461223) converted rnlo B S R I Co. LLP (a
No. AAB-8181) with eflecl lrom Oclober 14 2013

Page 1 of 9



BSR&Co.LLP

lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Private Limited

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profiU loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the group and of its associate are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

ln preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of each
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and the respective Board of
Directors of its associate are responsible for overseeing the Jinancial reporting process of each company.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 1a3(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

Managemenfs and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
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lndependent Auditor's Report (Conti n ued)

Fractal Analytics Private Limited

estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated flnancial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

' Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section
titled "Other Matters" in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

a We did not audit the financial statements of 5 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 446 million as at 31 March 2023,|o|a| revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 482 million and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 7 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

W
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f ndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Fractal Analytics Private Limited

b. The financial statements/financial information of 19 subsidiaries, whose financial statements/financial
information reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 1,908 million as at 31 March
2023, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 2,966 million and net cash outflows
(before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 65 million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by other
auditors. These unaudited financial statementsiunaudited financial information have been furnished
to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in

terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
is based solely on such unaudited financial statements / financial information. ln our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
statements/financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial
statements/financial information certified by the Management.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditols Report) Order,202O ("the Orde/') issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which io the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors, except that in respect of two subsidiaries, the
back-up of a project ticketing software which forms part of the 'books of account and other relevant
books and papers in electronic mode' of those subsidiaries, has not been maintained on the
servers physically located in lndia.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. ln our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directorsof the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companres and associate company incorporated
in lndia, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate company incorporated in
lndia is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
16aQ) of the Act except that one director of a subsidiary company has not provided written
representation as required in terms of section 164(2) of the Act. ln the absence of such
representation, we are unable to comment whether the said director is disqualified from being
appointed as director under Section 16a(l of the Act as at 31 March 2023

the observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above
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lndependent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the "Other Matters"
paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate. Refer Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
Including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate company
incorporated in lndia during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and associate company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or othenarise, that the lntermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and associate company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and associate company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies and associate company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in lndia whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in lndia
has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. As proviso to rule 3(1)of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014is applicable forthe Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary companies and associate company only with effect from 1

Aprrl 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 is not
applicable.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the provisions of Section
197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate
company incorporated in lndia since none of these companies is a public company. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 1 97(1 6) of the Act which are required
to be commented upon by us.

FoTBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:1 01248WW-100022

t*

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 July 2023

Rajesh Mehra

Partner

Membership No.: 103145

lCAl UDIN:23103145BGX\ XlB341
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Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Fractal Analytics Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in lndia and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
certain remarks given by the respective auditois in their reports under the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Subsidiary

Rajesh Mehra

Paftner

Membership No.:'1 03145

lCAl UDIN:231 031 45BGXWX|B341

F

Sr.
No,

Name of the entities

(i) Analytics Vidhya
Educon Private

Limited

ctN

(ii)

u80904MP2014P
TC032389

Holding
Company/Subsi

diary/ JV/
Associate

Sensforth
Research
Limited

Subsidiary

AI
Private

u72900KA2017P
TC1 01 706

Date: 19 July 2023

Place: Mumbai

Clause
number of the
CARO report

which is
unfavourable
or qualified or

adverse

FoTBSR&Go.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. : 1 01 248WW-1 00022
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Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Fractal Analytics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(AXg) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' sectlon of our report of even date)

ln conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Fractal Analytics Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company , as
of that date.

ln our opinion, the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (the "Guidance Note").

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Opinion

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Annexure B to the lndependent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Fractal Analytics Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
$rovide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statemenls for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inglude those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

FoTBSR&Co.LLP

Charlered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:'l 0124BWW-1 00022

F

Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 July 2023

Rajesh Mehra

Partner

Membership No.: 103145

lCAl U Dl N:231 031 45BGXWXI8341

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
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Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3L,2023

1. Corporatelnformation

Fractal Analytics Private Limited (Fractal' or 'the Company' or 'the Parenf) is a private limited
Company, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company and iG subsidiaries (hereinafter referred
to as'the Group') is the leading provider of advanced analytics that helps companies leverage data
driven insights in taking considered decisions. The analytics solution of Fractal helps companies to
enhance profitability by powering their customer management efforts with scientific decision making,

The registered office of the Parent Company is located at Level 7, Commez II, International Business
Park, Oberoi Garden City, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai, India.

Significant accounting policies followed by the Group

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20151 and other relevant provisions ofthe Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments), Employees Stock Option plan as per fair value of the option and Employee's Defined
Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation.

The consolidated tinancial statements are presented in lndian rupees (INR), whrch is Group's
presentation currency. All values are rounded off to nearest Million, exceptwhen otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on July 19, 2023.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances, The group combines the financial statements of the parent
and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

2.2 BusinessCombination
(i) The Group accounts for each business combination by applying the acquisition method. The

acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in

determining the acquisition date and determining whether control is transferred from one pafty
to another.

(ii) Control exists when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through power over the
entity.

(iii) The Group measures goodwill as of the applicable acquisition date at the fair value of the
consideration transferred less the net recognized amount of the identifiable assets acquired and



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3L,2023

liabilities (including contingent liabilities in case such a liability represents a present obligation
and arises from a past event, and its fair value can be measured reliably) assumed, When the

fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the consideration
transferred, a bargain purchase gain is recognized as capital reserve.

(iv) Consideration transferred includes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by

the Company to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the
Company. Consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration.
Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing
relationships.

(v) Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation
to pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as

equity, then it is not remeasured, and seftlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise
subsequent changes in the fair value ofthe contingent consideration are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(vi) Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, such as
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional and consulting fees, are
expensed as incurred.

(vii) Non-controlling interest is measured at proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifi able net assets,

(viii) Any goodwill that arises on account of such business combination is tested annually for
impairment.

Loss of control
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction. If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it:

(i) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

(ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests.

(iii) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

(iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

(vi) Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed off the
related assets or liabilities.

2.4 Investment in associate

(i) An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method unless otherwise stated.

2.3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3Lt 2023

(ii) Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment in associates is increased or decreased to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss after the date of acquisition, unless the share purchase
agreement specify otherwise. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting
policies in line with those of the Group. Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in those entities.
Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE)

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such cost includes its purchase price including inward
freight duties, taxes and all incidental expenses incurred to bring the asset to its present location and
condition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress includes cost of PPE under development as at the Balance Sheet date and is
carried at cost, comprising of direct cost and direcUy attributable cost.

The carrying amount of PPE is eliminated from the consolidated financial statements, either on
disposal or when retired from active use. Losses/gains arising on derecognition of the PPE is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE has been provided on straight line method as per the estimated useful lives. The
residual values and useful lives of propefi, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and changes, if any, are accounted in the line with revisions to accounting estimates.

Rate of depreciation where there are propefty, plant and equipment:

Description of assets
Furniture and fixtures

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

The intangible assets such as software and intellectual property are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises of the acquisition price, and any cost

&Co

* l{esco

Western

and

,o

Office equipment

*

Leasehold improvements
Computers and accessories
Vehicles

Useful life of assets
3 - 10 vears
3 - 5 vears
Over the oeriod of lease
3 - 5 vears
8 vears
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recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value based on an appropriate

discount factor. Intangible under development are tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred, together with the amount of non-

controlling interest in the acquiree, over the fair value of the Group's share of identifiable net assets

acquired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.

The goodwill acquired in a business combination is, for the purpose of impairment testing, allocated

to cash- generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Any

impairment loss for goodwill is recognised direcdy in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. On disposal of a cash-generating unit to which
goodwill is allocated, the goodwill associated with the disposed cash-generating unit is included in the

carrying amount of the cash-generating unit when determining the gain or loss on disposal.

2.8 Foreign Currency translation

Functional and Presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). These

consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is functional and
presentation currency ofthe Parent Company.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised using exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilfties denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the

functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date and foreign exchange gain

or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated

using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.

Group Companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet
income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates

On consolidation, Exchange differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity (as

exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation).

I

a
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2.9 Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognized when the Group satisfies performance obligations under the terms of its
contracts, and control of the services is transferred to ils customers, in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Group expects to receive from its customers in exchange for those services. This

process involves identifying the customer contract, determining the performance obligations in the

contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction price to the distinct

perbrmance obligations in the contract, and recognizing revenue when the performance obligations

have been satisfied. A peformance obligation is considered distinct from other obligations in a

contract when it :

(a) provides a benefit to the customer either on its own or together with other resources that are

readily available to the customer and ;

(b) is separately identified in the contract. The Group considers a performance obligation satisfied

once it has transferred control of services to the customer, meaning the customer has the ability to

use and obtain the benefit from the services rendered.

Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised on output basis measured by efforts

expended.

Revenue related to fixed price retainership contracts is recognised based on time elapsed and is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of performance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion

method ('POC method') with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the
performance obligation.

Subscription services revenues consist of fees from customers accessing Groupt cloud based

software solutions. Revenues are recognized when control of these services is transferred to
customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be entitled to in exchange for
those services. The Group's subscription arrangements are considered service contracts and the

customer does not have the right to take possession of the software.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume

discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer,

Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts,

Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is

unconditional rightto receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract liability") is recognised when there is billings in excess of
revenues,

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based payments and / or

milestone based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and

requirements. The Group reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract,

basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new peformance obligation, or transaction
price of an existing obligation could undergo a change.
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In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted
for.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend is recognised as income when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been

established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of income can be measured reliably),

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

2.LO Employee benefits

Defi ned contribution plans

The Group's contribution to Provident fund and Labour Welfare Fund are considered as defined

contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount ofcontribution required to be

made as and when services are rendered by the employees.

In addition, the Group makes contribution to defined contribution retirement benefit plans under the
provisions of section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for USA employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government

bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive

income. They are included in retained earnings, through other comprehensive income, in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendrnents or

curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the

services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the

service. These benefits include performance incentive incentive and compensated absences in few
geographies which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which

the employee renders the related service.

2.LL Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum ofthe tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax'as reported in

the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those

deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised. Such

deferred tax asseG and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the repofting period,

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set oft the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the
liability on a net basis.es.

Current and deferrcd tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or direcdy in equity respectively.
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2.L2 Leases

The Group as a lessee
The Group's lease asset dasses primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii)the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and

(iii) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU")and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

The group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right -of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right -of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if
any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated
using the straight -line method from the commencement date over the lease term.

The group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date of the lease, The lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right
of use asset if the group changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

The Group does not have any lease contracts wherein it acts as a lessor.

Under Ind AS 116, this will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an
increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

2.L3 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 ,2023

A. Financial assets

(i) Classification, recognition a nd measurement:

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive

income, or through profit or loss), and

b) those to be measured at amortized cost,

The classification depends on the Groupt business model for managing the financial assets and

whether the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other

comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model

in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether

the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity

investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Type of
instruments

Debt
instruments

Classification

At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are
directly
attributable to
the acquisition
of the financial
asset

co./-

Amoftized cost

Rationale for
classification

Assets that are
held for
collection of
contractual cash

flows where
those cash flows
represent solely
payments of
principal and

interest on
principal amount
outstanding are
measured at
amoftized cost.

Initial
measuremen
t

Subsequent
measurement

Fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
(FVOCT)

Amortized cost is

calculated using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR)

method, taking into
account interest income,
transaction cost and
discount or premium on
acquisition. EIR

amortization is included in
finance Income. Any gain

or loss on derecognition of
the financial instrument
measured at amortized
cost is recognised in profit
and loss account.

Assets that are
held for
collection of
contractual cash
flows and for
selling the
financial assets,
where the

At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are
directly
attributable to
the acquisition
of the financial

MUMBAI.63 i
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Changes in carrying value
of such instruments are
recorded in OCI except for
impairment losses, interest
income (including
fansaction cost and
discounts or premium on
amortization) and foreign
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assets' cash

flows represent
solely payments
of principal and
interest on
principal amount
outstanding, are
measured at
FVOCI.

On derecognition of the
financial assets measured
at FVOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is

classified from Equity to
Profit and Loss account in
other gain and loss head.

asset exchange gain/loss which
is recognized in income

statement.

Fair value
through profit
or loss (FVTPL)

Interest income,

transaction cost and

discount or premium on

acquisition are recognized

in the income statement
(finance income) using

effective interest rate
method.

Changes in fair value of
such assets are recorded
in income statement as

other gains/ (losses) in the
period in which it arises.

*

Interest income from
these financial assets is

included in the finance
income.

FVOCI

o

l,t/o$em

*

Assets that do
not meet the
criteria for
amoftized cost
or FVOCI are
measured at fair
value through
profit or loss.

Any gain or loss
on a debt
instrument that
is subsequently
measured at fair
value through
profit or loss and
is not paft of a

hedging
relationship is

recognized in
profit or loss in
the period in
which it arises.

At fair value

Transaction
cosls of
financial
assets
expensed to
income
statement

Equity
instruments

The Group's
management
has made an
irrevocable
election at the
time of initial
recognition to
account for the
equity

At fair value
plus

transaction
costs that are

directly
attributable to
the acquisition
of the financial
asset

Changes in fair value of
such instruments are
recorded in OCL

On disposal of such

instruments, no amount is

redassified to income
statement.

Impairment losses (and



investment (on
an instrument by

instrument
basis) at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income. This
election is not
permitted if the
equity
investment is

held for trading.
The classification
is made on initial
recognition and
is irrevocable.

Dividend income from
such instruments are

however recorded in

income statement.

FVTPL

reversal of impairment
losses) on equitY

investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported
separately from other
changes in fair value.

All financial asseG are recognised initially at fair value and for those instruments that are not
subsequently measured at FVTPL, they are recorded as plus/minus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,

(ii) Impairment

When no such
election is made,
the equity
instruments are
measured at
FVTPL

Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 3L,2423

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement

and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.9., loans,

deposits, and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables.

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables which do not contain a significant financing component.

At fair value.

Transaction
costs of
financial
assets
expensed to
income
statement

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repofting date, right

from ils initial recognition.

.f

(iii) Derccognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is derecognised only when

Co

*
Westeln

Changes in fair value of
such assets are recorded
in income statement.

(a) the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
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(b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, In such cases, the financial

asset is derecognised, Where the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not

retained control of the financial asset, Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the

asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

B. Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

Debt and equity instruments issued by an entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Classifi cation, recognition and measurement:

(a) Equitylnstruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

(b) Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value minus any transaction costs that are

attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at FVTPL which are initially

measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement:

The financial liabilities are classified for subsequent measurement into following categories:

- at amortized cost
- at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(i) Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

The Group is classiflTing the following under amoftized cost;
- Borrowings from bank
- Borrowings from others
- Trade payables

Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amoftization using

the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.
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(ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains or losses arising on

remeasurement, recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability,

Derecognition:

A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the obligation is discharged, or is

cancelled, or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender

on substantially difFerent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

2.14 Fairvalue measurement:

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, ceftain investments, at fair value at each balance

sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

a
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2.15 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and

the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of managementt best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to

determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage

of time is recognised as interest expense.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the

Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the

contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost ol
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision

is established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more unceftain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setde or a

reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes.
Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset. Provisions and
contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

2.16 Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with ernployees is measured at fair value at the date at which
are granted. The fair value of share awards is determined with the assistance of an external valuer
and the fair value at the grant date is expensed on a proportionate basis over the vesting period

based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. The estimate of the number of
awards likely to vest is reviewed at each balance sheet date up to the vesting date at which point the

estimate is adjusted to reflect the current expectations.

2.17 Segment repofting:

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is

available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision

maker evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
pedormance indicators.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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2.19 Dividend distribution to equity shareholders:

Dividend distributed to Equity shareholders is recognised as distribution to owners of capital in the

Statement of Changes in Equity, in the period in which it is paid/payable.

2.20 Earnings per share:

The basic earnings per share C'EPS') is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the

year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily conveftible instrument are

included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

The diluted earnings per share('DEPS) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the
year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year, as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.21 Current/ Non-current dassification:

An asset is classified as current if:

(a) it is expected to be realised or sold or consumed in the Group's normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current if:
(a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) it is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) the Company has no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

cash and cash equivalents. The Group's normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.22 Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions:

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various

other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the

consolidated financial statements were prepared. The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in the year in which the
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In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

a. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: The Company

reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles at the end of each

reporting period, This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortisation

expense in future periods.

b. Defined benefit plan: The cost of the defined benefit gratuity obligation is determined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ

from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,

future salary increases and moftality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and

its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

c. Allowances for uncollected accounts receivable and advances: Trade receivables do not

carry interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts, Individual trade receivables are written off when management

deems them not collectable. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model, which is the
present value of the cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets. The impairment
provisions for financial assets are based on assumption about the risk of default and expected loss

rates. Judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment

calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Contingencies: Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim/ litigation against Group as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

e. Sharc-based payments: The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with

employees using Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred on the
grant date. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of
the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the
grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making

assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-

based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

f. Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets: The Group uses estimates and
judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances

and disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred

tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the

Group exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end

of each reporting period.

g. Revenue recognition:
r The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is

satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such
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as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset

as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for pedormance to date

and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to

the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contracts is recognised using percentage-of-completion method.
The Group uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts

which is used to determine the degree of the completion of the performance obligation.

h. Leases: The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements oF

Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease ifthe Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an

option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease

term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being

evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

2.23 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time,
On March 3L, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, as below:

Ind AS I - Presentation of Financial Statements : This amendment requires the entities to
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors : This
amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates'and induded amendments to Ind AS
8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates,
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,

2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes : This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial
statement
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(3)

P.rticlllars

G.ots carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022
Additions

Dersognition on account of los of @ntrol of {bsidiary
comoanv (Refer note 38)
Disposals
Exchange differencg on translating the financial statements of

ComputeFand LeasehoH
acces$rles lmprcvements

Fumiture and
fixtureg Vehid$ OfficeEquipment

(in Rupes million)

Tobl

1,385368
4

(0)

(0)

20

64

0

(0)

260693
182

(33)

(r1)

3

r86

(33)

(11)

23

As at April 01, 2022
Dertrognition on account of lN of contsol of sbsldiary
comoanv (Refer note 38)
Charqe for the vear
Disoosls
Exchange differencs on translating the financial statements of

361

(r8)

181
(e)

2

203

29

890

(18)

256
(e)

19

29s

(0)

4L
(0)

17

31

Grcss €rrylnq amount
As at April 01, 2021

Additions

Additions on account of business combinations (Refer note 35)

Disposls
Exchange differencs on fanslatinq the financial statements of

380

310

4

(1)

0

62

1

1

260 2 357

1

1

1,061

3L2

6

(3)

9

(2)

9

Accumulated depredadon
As at April 01, 2021
Charqe for fte year
on disDosb
Exchanqe differencs on translatinq the financial statements of

242
119

(0)

0

25!74
29

(1)

229
61

0

67r

(1)

5

Note : The Grcup d@ not hold any immovable properh:s.
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(4) Right of use assets
(in Rupees million)

Pafticulars Amount

Gross carrying amount
As at April Ol,2O22 1-tL48

Additions 276

Disposals (218)

Exchange differences o

Accumulated amortisation
As at April OL,}OZZ 689

Charge for the year 246

On disposals (187)

Exchanqe differences o

ttet carrvlnq amount as

Gross carrying amount
As at April OI,1O2L 1,052
Additions on account of business combination (Refer note 35) 42

Additions 50

Disposals
Exchanqe differences on translatino the flnancial statements of foreion operations 4

As at March 31'2022
Accumulated amortisation

As at April 0I,202L
Charge for the year

On disposals
Exchanqe differences on translatinq the financial statements of foreiqn operations

As at March 3L,2022 689
Net carrvinq amount as at March 31,2022 459

Note :

1. The Right of use asset as per Ind AS-116 comprises of lease of office premises.

2. Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation reflects change in value of asset
adjusted for closing rate of local currency in respective geography.

3. The aggregate amoftisation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under depreciation and amortisation
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

451
238
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(5) Goodwill
(in Rupees million)

Particulans

Goodwill at the beqinning of the year
Add: On account of acquisition (Refer note 35)
Add: Exchange differences on translating the financial
statements of foreion oDerations

As at As at
March 31,2O23 March 31,2022

3,2:L

2r4

4t2
2,744

45

Goodwill at the end ofthe vear 3,475 3,26t

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to major cash-generating units as follows:
(in RuPees million)

Particutars As at As at

4l Consulting Inc 218 200

senseforth.ai Group 362 338

Samya,ai Group 122 116

Analytics Vidhya Educon Private Limited 181 181

Neal Anah^ics GrouD 2,3L4 2,L48
Toti,.l 3,475 3,26t

Cash{enerating units (CGU) to which goodwill is allocated are tested for impairment annually at each reporting date, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less

than the carrying amount of the unit, the lmpairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill

allocated to that unit. The Group estimates the value-in-use of the CGUS based on the future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated
future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts, The discount
rates used for the CGUS represent the weighted average cost of capital based on the historical market returns of
comparable companies.

The goodwill amount for respective years (relating to different CGUs individually) has been evaluated based on the cash

flow forecasts ofthe related CGUs and sensitivity analysis done on the forecasted cash flows. Basis the same, the
recoverable amounts ofthese CGUS exceeded their carrying amounts.

An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (operating margin, discount rates and long

term average growth rate), based on reasonable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the
recoverable amount of the CGU would decrease below its carrying amount as on date.

The estimated value-in-use of CGUs is based on the fufure cash flows using a 30/o-5o/o Terminal growth rate and discount
rate of 18olo to 30o/o.

The discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) which represents the weighted average

return attributable to all the assets of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU).

MUMBAI.63

*
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Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Not6 to Con3olHated llnandal 3tatrment3 for year Ended March 31, 20Zl

(6) Othsr lntrnglblc asB

Computor
Sofuam

Ir*dl4tual
Prcp€rty

Custm€r
clatioGhip

9ereEt€d
intangiblo

DevelopGd
PdrtldhF Bnnd P.tst Tohlcont6t

As atApil 0t, 2022
Additions
Drcgnition on acdunt of lo$ of conbolof $bsidiary company
(Refer mte 38)
Exdlange diFerflcs on hnslating $e financial sbtements of fordgn

56 274

6

859 3061t
231

(r8l)
'.0,

1,936
279

(183)

1194268

Accumllrted
As at Apil 0t, 2022
Drcgnition on a@unt of los of @nrolof sb6idiary @mpany
fRefer mE 38)
Charce for he v€r
0n dismsals
Prcvision for ImFiment lors (Refer mE 3 below)
Exdlange diffeMG d hnshting dE finanaial sbmenE of foreign

:n

3

238

27

267
(108)

130

4
u

44

10

As atAgril 01, 2021

Addltions
Addltions on acount of hidns @mbinatim (Ref€r noh 35)
Exchaige difierfics on b'anshting be finanaial statenents of toreign

42

805
72

270
96

236
3

30

647
95

1.173
20

395
235

2

118

:*'
32
35
(0)

198
39

1

43
5
I

As at Aoril 01.2021
charce forthe year

on han5btiro the finanoal stements offoreign

Note 1 : Refer mte 16 fordeEils of drarqe/hypotkation crcated qainst lnbnqible 6ets.

is as follows :

Year
2024
2025
Afttr 2026

300
238
591

impairmentloss of k 84 million.

(6.1) Intanqlble Ar*ts Under D@ebDm€nt (UUD)

Glott cafllnq amount
A at Aoril 01, 2022

Additions
Ls: Caoitalisation
[6 : Prcvl9lon for Impalmst ln value of IAUD
(Refer rcte I and 2 below)
Ls : kr@nition of 6sets on ac@unt of Loss of @ntml of

299
102

(231)
(87)

(76)
subsdiary @mdnv (Refer mte 3g)

k at tardr 31. 2OE 7

As atApril 01, 2021
Additions
L6s: capitali$tion
Dsmsls -

tuatMrd31.2o22 g

impaiment 16 of Rs 4 mllllon.

be bdow rts @nying amount ard h€nc 100% impaiment prcvisioning is rognisd amunting to ps &3 million.

Ageing of Pole.t3 ln pqlw (atglw v.lue)

toblL6tllrn lya. 1-2 ydF 2-3 VdF
tuat 3L,2023 20

L97
198
(96)

&

632
(108)

279

&
35

r02

*

Co

Westem

,o

*



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financlal statements fbr yea. end€d Marth 31, 2023

(a) Aqqreqate crryinq wlue of unquoted invstments

a 
^ra

?.q06
t sn6

7,397 4,03s

Particulars

(7) Investments ( l{on-qrrr6nt)

A fnvestment in €quiw instrumsnts of Associates account€d for under the
6qulw method
Investments in unquoted equity lnstruments

Oure.al Tffhnoloqis Private Limlted
250,000,000 (March 31, 2022: 250,000,000) equity shares of Rs 1 fulv paid up
(Refer note 38)

Tobl carrying value

E.Other investments
(Unouoted, m$sured at amortlsed @st)
RX.heath Inc.
(March 31, 2023 658.761 shares of series S€ed-2 preferred stock)
(l4arch 31. 2022 658,751 shares ot series Seed-2 prefen€d stock)

Total (non-orent)

Other invBtments (Currcnt)

Investments (Current)
(Nleasured at fair value throuqh orofit and loss)
Invstsnent in liquld muhral funds units (unquoted)

As at
Mrr.h ?1 tnrQ

4479

L2

a 
^oa

t2



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Not s to Con$lidatrd financial stat€mqntsfor y..r €nd€d March 31' 2023

ParticulaE

(8) trade recelvabls

Trade ffiivables
-un*cured, mnsldered oood

- Unscured, @nsidered doubful
- unbilled reeivables
Sub Total
Allowance for doubtful debts
Currcnt tradG recelvables

Aqelnq of Tade .eelvabl€3

As at
I'larch 31, 2023

Ar at
ilarch 31, 2022

3,400
66

1,609
5,07S

2,715
22

1,243
3,980root t2z)s.oog 3,958

Particula6 Curent but not due Ls 6 
6 months- l yor 1-2 ysrrc 2-3 y€F More th.n 3 ysrc Total

(l) Undlsputed Trade relvables - @nsldered good

nnEiiElreelvaFlet

3,103 285 12 3,400

1,609

ParticolaF Curent but not du€
6 fiontbs - 1 y€r 1-2 yeaB 2-3 yar More than 3 yearc Total

Trade
Undisputed Trade rfteivables - onsidered good 1,879 699 111 2! 2,715

(9a) c.sh and €sh ilulvalents

Cash on hand *

In curent a6ount5
Deposits with originalmaturity of le$ 0lan 3 montrls
Total 6sh and 6sh equivalents
*Amdnts le$ than R6 1 millpn

(9b) Brnk b.lanceoth€rthrn above
In flxed deposit a@unt widr oriqinal maturiw of 3 months or more

(10) Currentloans
Ssured, considered cood
Loan to dirtrtor (Refer note 29)
Total current loans

o

2,t32 1,813
-18

2,132 1,832

419
7t 4'9

269 492

71

Type of Borrower Amount q6 oftotal Loans qo oftotal Loans

Note : Loan is given to a dirfftq on Dsember 8, 2021 whfh is repayable on demand. Lfin io director is ssured against the sid shar6 held by the dlreclor on full rtrouR basis,

(11) Oth€r financial asts

Derivalive a$et at fair value thrdqh Drcfit or 16 - forward contract
Securiw deposlts
Other bank deD6it

Carrent Enancial a#ts
Derivative aset at fair value thraqh Drcfit or 16 - forward @nbact
other receivablE

irt ,1"
an-

267 181

-8t
14
69

(12) Othelasets

Iton-Curcnt affit5
Prepaid expen*s
Employee advances

Total non-currcnt asts

Currant eB
Preoaid expen*s (Refer note below)
ContEct assets (Refer note ?7)
Advancs to vendffi and others
Balance with qovemment authorltles
Ls : LN allowane

35 26
5-

40 26

307
524

30
238

383
555

35
r87
(10)

Note : Prepaid expenses includes Rs 114 milllon towards planning for initial public offer and is to be shared by fte Cmpany and sellinq share holders.
1.150 1,099



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Conslidated financial statements for year ended March 31. 202|:l

(13) D€ferrcd tax as$ts (n€t)

Deferred tax liabilities
Loss of control of subsidiary comDany
Total Defered tax liabilites

Def€red tax asscts
Difference between book and tax value of orcoerv. Dlant and equiDment and intanqible assets
Net oDeratino losss
Provision for Gratuiv
Others
Total Deferred tax assets

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(1.016)
(1,016)

9
341

2

29
358

1

l{et deferr€d tax assets/(lhbilities)

(a) Movements in deterr€d tax ass€ts/(liabilities)

(6L7r ?67

Property,plant& Eusin€ssloss€s/ Losiofcontrolof
Ptrticuhrs equlpmentand unabsorbed sub3idiary

Provision lior
GratuiV** Total

At ADril 01. 2021
On account of business combination (Refer note 35)
(Charqed) / Credlted
- to Drofit or loss
- to other comorehensive income

29
(32)

13 (0)2
(0)

(charqed) / Credlted
- to orofit or loss
- to other comDrehensive income

19 (1)

115
399 367

33r

xRefer note 38
**Amounts less than Rs 1 million

in the near future, based on various internal measures taken, against which unused losses and thereby such deferred tax assets can be realised.
Further, no deferred tax has been recognised on unused tax losses of Rs. 829 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs 861 million).

(bt The tax losses of the Gmup will lapse in sub*quent yeam as follows:

As at
March 2022

As at
March 31.2023

V€TS 1.125
1,894Bevond 8 vears 2,374

(in Rures million)

OtheB**

(r,016)

0
0

Partkulars

812

o(n

(c) Incomo tar exDens€

items. It also explains significant estimates in relation to the Group's tax position.

fncom€ tax exDense is as follows:

Partkulars

(a) Profit and loss
Curent tax for the year

Tax adiustrnent for org/ious year

Deferred tax for the year

(d) R€conciliation of tax oxp€ns€ and the book proflt computed by applying income tax rat€:

Tax rate

Adiustmentsl
Curent year losses for which deferred tax asset is not recoonised
Utilisation of carrv fomard losss against which deferred tax asset was not rtr@nised €rlier
ExDenses not deductible for tax ourDose
Tax adiustrnent for orevious year

Impact of different tax rate
Foreion tax o€dit claim
State taxes

1,011

384
(4)

10
(2s)

25
(14)

2

Partkulars

From 5 -

(14)

Co

*

375
(32)

15
(0)

(1.011)

\ili' rle(n

anil

rk

I lon

Year ended
March 31,2023

Year ended
March 31,2022

174
5

Year ended
M.Fh al tnt?

(1)

25
(rs)

? t?t

521
(157)

146

5
(155)

13
3n



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notesto Cqn$lidatod financial statsments for Y€ar cnd€d March 31, 2023

(14) Equity shato epital

349,200,000 equity shares of face value Rs. 1 each

(March 31, 2022 : 43,650,000 equiw shares of face value Rs. 1 each)

38,100,000 0.001o/o Cmpulsorlly converuble preference shars of face value Rs.1 eadl
(March 31, 2022 ; 6,350,000 0.001o/o Compulsrily convertible preference shars of face value Rs.1 €ch)

The authqired share @pitalof the Parent Cmpanv has ben incrfts€d vide board reslutis date )ulv 22,2022'

Isued share caPltal
26,189,854 equity shares of face value Rs.l
(f4arch 31, 2022 : 25,947,598 equN shaH of ps. 1 each)

4,523,604 0.001 % Compulsrily @nvetible preference shares of fae wlue Rs.l each
(March 31,2022 | 4,523,604 0.001 9o cimpul$rilv convertible Dreferenc shares of bce value Rs l €ch)

sufun'bad and tulU pald-up
25,524,996 equity shares of ldce value Rs.l each tully paid up
(Flarch 31, 2022 : 25,282,740 equity shaes of Rs. 1 each tully paid up)

4,523,604 0.001 % Compulsorily onvertible preference shars of hce value Rs.1 fulV paid up
(tvlarch 31, 2022 : 4,523,504 0.001 qo Compulsrlly cmvertible preference shars of f"e value Rs,1 tully paid up)

Subscdbed but not fttilv Nid-uq
664,858 equity share of face wlue Rs.1 (Rs 0.5 paid up) (Refer rcte (i) below)*
(t'4arch 31, 2022 : 664,858 equity share ot lace value Rs.l (Rs 0.5 paid up))

*Amounts le$ than Rs 1 millpn

(a) Rffondllauon ofshares outstandlng at t r€ beqlnnlnc and at tfi€ €nd of the ve.r

349

38

50

44

6

3l

31

347

31

31

26

5

26

5

26

5

31

As
Particula6

At the erd of the y€ar

(b) partlculaF ot shar€holdeE holdlnq more ttran 5olo shara ota clas ofshaE

232,856

9,400

694,939

t,329,716

March 31, 2o,jt

NumberofshaE Amount

Eauitv sharc
At the commencement of the vear
Add :- shares isred durinq the vear under
- employee sttrk opbon plan (Refer note (i) below)*
- PriEte plaement ofsha6 (Refer note (li) below)*

At the end of the y€r

25,947,sgg

26,189,a9

* Amounb less $an Rs 1 millio

(i) During the year 232,856 shares (March 31, 2022:594,939) were issued under employee stock option plan at various price (Refer note 33)

(ii) Durinq the year 9,400 shars (March 31, 2022: 1,329,716 shars (including 664,858 partly paid up shares)) were i$ued on a private placement basis.

0.007or'o Compulgrily Conrertiile Prcfqerce Sha6
At Ble commencement of the year

Ised during the year
4,523,604

4,523,604

4.523.504 5 4,523,60

24

26 25,947,594 26

26

5

(a) Equlw sha6 of Rs, I €ch tully pald-up h€ld bY

Qutnag Bidco umired 22.680/o 5,939,620 22.89Vo 5,939,620

TPG Fett Holdinqs Pte Umited 28.08% 7,353,814 28.34o/o 7 ,353,814
cita l4irdrandani LL.95Vo 3,131,260 12.0701o 3,131,260

Gulu Mhchandani 9.03% 2,365,296 9.r2o/o 2'365'296

PranayAgrawal 6.50% 1,727,812 6'66oh 1,727,812

Srikanth Velamakanni* 5.83% 1,527'378 5.89% 1,527374

Chetana Kumar 5.15o/o 1,349.151 5.20% 1.349.151
(b) Compul$rlly Convertlble Prelercnce Shars of lts, I each fullv Dald-up held bv
Quinaq Bidco umited 73.78o/o 3,337,505 73.78o/a 3,317,505

TPG Fett Holdings Pte Limited 26.22% 1,186,099 26.22% 1,186,099

*Number of shares consists 664,858 Dardy Dald uD shar6 issued on private placement basis (Refer note a(ii) above)

(c) Shars held by Companis having signifient influ€nc/Contrcl

31

l,tardr 31, 2022

Numb€rofshaE Amount

*

ParticulaF

Particula6

Sharci held by TPG Fett H,oldings Pte Limited

(a) Equlty shars of Rs. I sch tully pald-up
(b) 0.001o/o compulsqiv convertible Prefurene shares of Rs. 1 each tulV paid-up

Shares held by Qulnag Bldco Llmltad
(a) Equiry shars of Rs. 1 each tully paid-up

(b) 0.0010/0 compulsdiV Convenible Preferene Shares of Rs. 1 each tulV paid-up

qo of total
shrrs ln
the clas

Number of
shaB

o/o of total Ntrmmf df
snar6 ln snatsue da$

As at
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023
o/o of total ilumbe. of
shals ln sh.rug
the clas

at
Mardr 31, 2022

As at
Mardr 31, 2022

o/o oftotal Numberof
shars ln shar6
the das

28.08% 7,3s3,814 2834qn 7,3s3,814

26.22ok 1,186,099 26.220/o r,186,099

22.68oh 5,939,620 22.89o/o 5,939,620

73.78o/o 3,337,505 73.7$vo 3,337,505

c

lvestern
*



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
NotEs to Con$lidatsd finarcial statsmantsforyar cnded March 31. Zo23

(d) Riqht3, orcfercncB and .$triclion3 attthcd to euitv shar

asts of dle Company after distribuuon of all preferential amounb, in proponbn to fteir shareholding.

(s) Rights, prefsrens and Et.ictionr attached to O.0o1qo Compulsorlly Convertible Pl€ferene Share3 (CCPS)

0.001o/o Compulsorily Convertible preference shar6: All outstanding CCPS shall be cmrerted bared on the then-appli€ble CCPS Cmversion Price on the earlier of :

(l) I (one) Buslnss Day ofthe explry of 5 (nve) yea6 from the Closlng Date;, as appll@ble; or

up pMss or a court directed winding-up prce$
(iii) f (me) Buslne$ Day prior to the date of consummation ofthe sale of any Securitls by $e Investor to a third party in accordance with the terms of th€ Shareholders agrement

Ele Shareholders Agrement

Company shall dtrlare dividend on EE CCPS equal to the per Equity Share dividend pronted to the A$umed Equlty Percentage,

The Company covenanb that till such time that any of fte CCPS are oubbndlng, Fre Cmpany shall not be entitled to dtlare any dividend on any Equity Shares in any y@r Ull $dl 6me as the

dlvidend in relaum to U€ CCPS has ben prwided for in full,

preference,

(f) shar6 rsryed fot lsued under optlons

(9) There were no shares allotted pursuant to contEct without payment being rtreived in csh or as tully paid up by my of bonus shares or any shares bought back'

(h) No dividend is declared by the Company during fie yars ended March 31, 2023 and March31,2022.

PardculaF n.rq 31'zoz3

s,tock option sheme (refer note 33)

(15) Othereouitv

Securibs oremium reserve
EmDlovee stock oDtion reserve
Other comprehensive income

Share appllcation mmv oendinq alloknent
Retained eaminqs
Total other equiw

Note : For movement durinq the year, refer sbtement of chanqe in equiw.

II,79I
486
(68)

11,982
2,016

36
3

1636)
13,400

*

MUMBAI.63
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Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notss to con$lidrtsd tlnencial sbtBmsnB for yar €nd€d lilarch 31, 2ol3

Partlculas

(16) Borcwims

3,416
(160)
(35)

3.221 2.985

- Cutrent maturitis of lonq term debt - Term loan (Refer note (a) below) 35 24
Total curent borrcwlngs 35 ,4
t{ote :

(a) Ihe Grcup has availed foreign curery f@ting interGt tem loan from fnancial irtitutions as per tem sh€et dated December 21, 2021 amandng to USD 42 milllon. The Grup has irurrd

tenor ofthe ban to Prcft and Los Aaqnt. Given bdow are various tems pertalnlng io $e tem loan.

Temlmns 3,4L6 35 3,381 TemSOFR FiveysEendingon 0.25%ofthe permlttedAcquisit'pnsandother

(Cap at 1%) + 6ryo December 21, 2026 aggregate principal Inv6tments pemitted under the Loan
amant of the D$uments
outslanding initial
amont on llrst day
of every quarter

ommencing ftom
Mardt 31,2022.

llnflmtbomwlnos
(at anotlied @st)
Ssred
- Tem l@n (Refer note (a) below)

Lss : ArEmment fes
L6s : Curent maturi66 of long term debt

Total sur€d borrcwingF
CuMtbomn4ruts
s€dr6d

3,164
(15s)

G4I

35 3,341

Call.t€rC I

owned subsidlary abrcd, i.e., fradal Analyti6 Inc., an entity organisd under the laws of United Stats ofAmeric
(b) 65ry0 share Pl€dge of Fractal UK Private Limiied an entity organ'sd under Sre laws of United Kingdom,
(c) tiypoth@tim/ charge over all intelltrtual property owned by the Group from India or United States of Ameri@ ,

Guarantor i
The above boruwhg ls backed by the guaEntee glven by Fnctal AnaW6 Prlvate Llmlted, Cuddle lnc USA, Neal Anavtl6 LLC and Flnal lt4lle Consultlng LLC.

3,416

MUMBAI.63 tl



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
t{otss to Con$lidatcd flnancial statemlnts for yar €nd€d !,larch 31, 20Zt

(171 1.36" o"r"51""
- Total oubtandinq dues ot ml6o enterorise and small enterDrises (Refer b€low note)
- Total outsbndinq dues of credltors oher than mkro enteDrises and small enterpriss

TotEl tEde lEYables

Particula6

Du6 of micre and small snbrpris
l.rnder tfE lricro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED') which came into force from 2 October 2005,
certain di$losuE are required related to MSME. On the basis of dE information and records available wih the Group, following are
the detalls of dus;
- the principal amount and tlE interest due thersn remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each acc@nbng year;

- the amount of intered paid by the buyer ln terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Nledium Enterpds Development Act, 2006,
along wi$ the amount of fte payment made to the suppller beyond fE appointed day during sch accanting year;

- the amdnt of interest due and payable for the period of delay ln making payment but wi$out adding the intftst specified under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpdss Development Act, 2006;

- the amont of interGt amed and remalning unpaid at the end of each acrcunting ysr; and

- the amdnt of tudher int€rest remalnlng due and payable even in the succeedlng y6rs, until such date when the lnterest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterpriF, for the purpG of dlgllowane of a deductlble expendlture under sctlon 23 of the
l,4icro, Small and Medium Enterpris Development Acl 2006.

lotal

(i) Tobl outstanding dues ol micrc enterprFs and small enterpriss

(r, r ubr uursErrutr€ uuc5 u ilnuu slerPrEs dilu strrdil en(crpnses

P.rtlcuhrc

54
566 622

____!z!_-------=f-

As at
Mardr 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

5

4

4

Againg ofTrado payabls

ParticulaE t{otd0e 
ou

Lsthanlyqr 1-2 y€aF 2-3y€F Morcthan3y@F Total

rdnt!urdr5 Not du€ 
Less than 1 y€. 1-z years z-3 y€B ttore than 3 y*B Total

(ii) Total outstanding dus ofcreditors oE|er than micrc enterprises and ffiall enterprises 3SS 254 13 622

(in Ruos million)

As at
Mardr 31,2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(18) Otlprfinancial liabilities

Non-curent fl nanclal llabllltls

llonflrmt omvldons
Gratuiw (Refer note 28)
Totrl non-curent provlslons

Cu.Mt prcrisbnt
GratuW (Refer note 28)
ComDensated abrences (Refer note 28)
Other Drcvisiore (Refer note 26)
Total Gu[€trt provisiotrs

140
Defered conside€bon oavable lRetur note 35(a)l -13

r4o 13

14
24
16

1,825
1

Currentflnancl.l llabllltls
Derivative liabilitis at fair value thrcuqh orofit or lo$ - fward contEcl
Defered @nsldemuon Davable lReier note 35(a)]
Employee related obllqation
Interst accred and due on borrcwinqs from financial institutions
Othets lRefer note 35 (c)l

(19) oth€rliabilitirs

Cutmt fiabiliti$
Uneamed revenue (Refer note 27)
Advance from dstomer
Statutory dues Dayable**
Other oavables

**Includs hx deducted at sources, provident fund payable, prcf6sional taxs and other forelgn slatutory du6

(20) Ppvisions

1,255

- 126
1,866 1,395

118 r20
118 120

110

836
r32
705

14 -
La2 t.6r?

3
14

868
1a

348

1

29
RO

MUMBAI.63

t7

*t
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Fractal AnalWics Private Limited
l{otes to Consolldated tlnanclal statements for year ended March 31, 2023

ParticulaB

(21)

Sale of services (Refer note 27)

Total Revenue from operatlons

(22) other lncome

Inhrest on :

- bank deposits
- Loan to dlKtoE
- unwindlng of Kurity deposits given

Falr value gain on dedvative and fomard contracts

Net galn on redemption/fair valuation of financial instrurnents

Foreiqn schanqe los / (qain), net
Miscellaneous incorne

Total other lncom€

(26)

19,854 12,953

19.8s4 12.953

543 aa7

fin Ruoes milliohl

Y€r 6nded
t'larch 3L 2023

Ydr 6nded
March 31, 2022

4
8

l1

155

306
89

16

9

3s

49

7a

62

61

16

(23) Employee b€neflts expen*

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contsibution to provldent funds (Refer note 28)

GGtuity (Refer note 28)

Employe stock optlon spenrc (Refer note 33)

Stafr welfarc qpens
Total employee beneflts erpen$ n,672 LL,Wg

(24) Finance costs

Interest on :

- bormwings
- leas liabilities (Refer note 30)
- others

Other borrcwinq cost
Total flnance costs

(25) Depreciation and amoftlatlon exo€nse

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)
Amoftisation on :

- Right of use assts (Refer note 4)
- Intangible as*E (Refer note 6)

Total depreciation and amortlatlon expens

Other exoens€s
Outsourced manDower cost
Leqal and Drofessional f€s
Software maintenance chames
Travellinq and conveyance
Communiction charqes
Recruitment qpenss
Advertisinq and publlcity expenF
Repairc and mainEnance expens - Compute6 and othe6
FaciliV manaoement qDenss
Rent, Etes and taxes (Refer note below)
InsuGnce gpense
Research qoens
Falr value loss on derivative and foruard contEcts
Forclqn qchanqe loss. net
Provision for doubtful advanes
Other current asset written otr
Bad debts
Provision for Bad debts
Membership and subsriotion charqes
CorooEte sial rcsDonsibility (Refer note 41)
Miscellaneous qDense
Total other exp€n*s

Not€!
The Company and all the DiHto6 of the Company has Keived show caus notice as to why prostruuon prccedings
under the Income tax Act 1961 (Act) should not be initiated against them for delay in deposit of bx dducted at surce
(TDS') of INR 405 million during FY 2019-20 (albeit the deposit of TDS was made with due interest for the delay wi$out
any intimation frcm the tax authorities). Detailed iustificatjon was prcvided against the sid SCN to establish a reaenable
cause for fte delay in deposit of TDS. However, without acceptancdadmi$ion of guilt of offence under the provisions of
the Act and to avoid litigation, sle Company in its Gpacity and and on behalf of all dirtrtots, on Dtrember 7, 2022 has
filed an application for compounding of ofrence before the tax depaftment.
The amount of INR 80 million is the estimated compoundlng fe for the Company and Directors, computed basis
compounding guidelines under the Incom-tax Act, 1961 which is dislosd under Rent, Etes and taxes,

(25.1) Exception.lltems
Imoairment in value of asrets (Refer note 6 and 6.1)
Gain on account of Loss of conbol of subsidiary company
(Refer note 38)

(s,410)

10,308

109

92

219

351

15,243

182

148

1,587

5t2

358

45

30

215

238

249
875
276
139
190
226
151
25
37
7L
28
64

32

iro
L0

4
63
9

256

246

sqa

560
432
327
269
158
234
93
38

153

45
56

152

10

44
@
6

L71

rl.-'j ^'i'r''
(

(

ts,zgg) -

MUMBAI-63
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Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial rtatementr for year ended March 31' 2023

(27) Revenue from contrdcts with cugtomers

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by nature of seruices.

Revenue disaggregation by nature of services is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Derecognition on account of loss of control of subsidiary company
(Refer note 38)
Revenue recoqnized durinq the year
Invoices raised during the year
Exchange ditferences on translating the financial statements of foreign

Changes in uneamed and deferred revenue are as follows:

Particulars

at year

year

Reconciliation of revenue recoqnlzed with the contracted price is as follows:

Note : / service credit to customers.

Year ended
March 31,2023

For geographical split of revenue, refer note 34

Particulars

While dlsclosing the aggregate amount of transaction price yet to be recognised as revenue towards unsatisfied (or partially satisfied)
performance obligations, along with the broad time range for the expected time to recognise those revenues, the Group has apdied the
practical expedient in Ind AS 115. Accordingly, the croup has not dlsclosed the aggregate transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially

satisfied) peformance obligations which pertain to contracts wtrere revenue recognized corresponds to the value transferred to customer
typically involving time and material, outcome based and event based contracts.

The Group has applied practical expedient as per paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about remaining performance

obligauons that have original expected duration of one year or less.

Contract Balances

Chanqes in contrac! assets are as follows:

Year ended
March 31, 2022

(in Ruoees million)

I March !1. zozg I i{arch 3L,2023

836

(146)

(422)

5,16

54

a6a

2,829
(2,617)

10

13,101
(r48)

The billing schedules agreed with c!stomers include periodic performance-based payments and / or milestone based progress payments.

Invoices are payable wiftin contractually agreed credlt period.

Pafticulars

Derecognition on account of loss of control of subsidiary company
(Refer note 38)
Amount reclassified to trade receivables
Revenue recognized that was included in the uneamed and defened revenue
balance at the beginninq of the year
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognized as
revenue durinq the year
Exchange differences on translating the financial statemenls of foreign

at

Contracted orice
Reductions towards variable consideration components

ParticulaE

*

o

Year

Ntsco
Nusttr

i

(87)

(21s)

783

11

Year ended
Mer.h !1- 2023

20,056
(202)

19,454



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2O23

(28) Emplove€ benefits

The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined contribution plan and deflned benefit plans in India

(a) Defined confibution plan

The Group entities in Indla have a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Conbibutions are made to provident fund in India for
employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligaton of the
Group is limited to the amount contribubed and lt has neither further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Particulars
Year

109

to 23)

(c) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity:

The Group entities in India provide for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years or more are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retrement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per
month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan with respect to
Parent ComDanv.
Key assumptions used for actuarial valuation by an Independent actuary under the Projected Unit Cost Method are as under:

Particulars

7.25o/o
10.000/o

24.00o/o
8.00o/o
4.O0o/o

Indian Assured Lives
l4ortality (20L2-14)

Ultimate -100o/o

1. Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indlan government securibes for the estimated term of the obligations.

2. Salary escalatjon rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.
3. Assumptions regardlng future mortality experience are set in accordance wlth the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of hdia.

Not6l

Employer's contribution to provident fund

(b) Compensated absences
LiabiliW under Compensated absences pertains to leave balances in subsidiary company and is disclosed under current provisions,

expense

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Attrition ]ate

Based on Completed Years of service
Up to 2 years

3 - 4 years

Above 4 years

l4ortality Rate

a, The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined b€nefit obligation (DBO) are as follows :

Year ended
Mareh 31- 2O2l

182

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

23.00o/o

5.000/o

2.00o/o

Indian Assured Lives
l"loftality (2012-14)

Ultimate -1000/o

7.50o/o

10.00%

I

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

A

Change in the present value of obligation

Prcs€nt value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Derecognition of liability on account ofchange of relationship ofsubsidiary entity to
associate entity (Refer note 38)

Liability assumed on acquisltion

Interest cost
Past service cost
Current service cost
Benefits paid

Remasutement due to
Actuarlal loss/(9ain) arising from change in financial assumptions

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising on account of demographical assumptions

- obligation with funded plan*
obliqation with unfunded plan

430

296
40

383
47

336

tl

red

March 31,2023

has invesbed the amounts in pension fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India,

March 31,2022

2_24

1Z

16

84

(2e)

2

5

22

336
(10)

24

140

(36)

(12)
(24)
12



change in the fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected returns on plan assets
Interest on plan assets
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Conbibutions made by the Company

Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

b. The amounts recognised in the balance she€t and movements in the fair value of plan assets over the year are as
follows:

March 31, 2023

Benefits paid

Fair value of assets at the end of the

l1 8

1

I

336
(214)

l2zNet deficit

92

March 31,2022

(12)

T2

(24)
(24)

c, The sensitiviW of significant assumptions used for valuation ofdefined benefit obligation is as follows :

Discount rate +100 basis points
Discount rate -100 basis points
Salary increase rate +100 basis points

Salary increase rate -100 basis points

Particulars

March 31, 2023

GratuiW Plan

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumptjon while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice it is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. The methods and types of assumptjon used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
chanqe compared to orevious period,

16 Years

e. Expected future benefit pavments on undiscounted basis

March 31, 2022

1 year
Year2-5years
6 - 10 years

More than 10 years

84
8

140
I

144

2
))

5

29

(3ss)
527
476

(380)

214

(290)
394
366

(307)

M.r.h ?l - tnr?

6
43
82

) )-70

March 31,2022

2r4
(2)
15

84

:t11

March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
and the fair value of assets

Pres€nt value of funded obligation at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period

Expected cash flows for following yeal

87

430
(311)

119

March 3L 2022

d, Weighted average duration of defined benefit plan :

Current service cost
Interest cost

Total expense recognized in the statement of prcfit and loss

March ?l- 2023

Amount recognised in other compnehensive income

Remeasurements during the year due to
Changes in financial assumptions

Changes in demographic assumptions

Experience adjustments

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the year

As at
March 31- 2023

21 Years

March 3t 2023

payments in next

As at

*tMUMBAI

13

57
100

I,178

1

*

-63





Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for year €nded March 31, 2023

(30) Leases

Group as less€e

consent.

(ii) The contractual maturities of Lease liabilities are as under on undiscounted basis:

(3v) Following amounts are recognis€d in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

The croup entlties have entered into cancellable leasing arrangement in respect of office premises for a period of 3-5 years which are renewable on mutual

As at
Mareh 31,2O23

s16

For the year ended
March 31f 2023

For the year ended
March 31,2022

543

277

45

G3)
9

(32s)
3

Lease payments recognised for short term leases in statement of Profit and I 33 I 27

Loss during the year I I

69
464

28

746
45
33

238

As at

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet he obligations related to lease

llabilities as and when hev fall due.

61

Particulars

Paticularc of Lease Liabilities

Add: On account of business combinations
Add: AddlUons on account of new leases

Add: Finance cost accrued during the year
Less: Terminatlon
Add: Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations

(i) Movement in Lease Liabilities3

243

Particulars

Amortisauon of Rioht of use assets
lnterest expense on lease liabilities

Particulars

Payable within one year
Payable later than one year and not later than five years

(iii)

As at
Meeh 11- 2O23

681
42
42
61

MUN4BAI.63

v

)t

As at

303
256



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31. 2023

(31) Fair value measurement

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including 16sir
levels in the fair value hierarchy, It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the
carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value - those include cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances,
trade receivables, other financial assets ,trade payables and other financial liabilities.

Assets
Investments 2 2,906 4,023
Derivative asset - Forward contract receivable 2 - 

- 

2l
Total assets z,gos ,O4
Liabilities

Derivative liabiliW - Forward contract payable 2 24
Totel liahillfiea 24

Assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets
Total assets 7,760 6,956

Liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liability
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total liabilities 6,325 5,586

Note: Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, loans, trade receivables, borrowings,lease liabilites,
trade payables and other liabilities as at March 3I,2023 and March 3L,2022 approximate the fair value.

Noter
There are no transfers between any ofthese levels during the current and previous year

12

5,009
2,132

7L

269
267

3,256
516
57L

r,982

12

3,958
1,832

4t9
492
243

009
543
626

3,

1,408



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

(32) Financial risk management framework

The Parent Companyt Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Groupt risk management
framework. Additionally, the Board for each Group entity is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies.
The Board holds regular meetings on its activities.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identif, and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and each Company's activities, The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive conbol environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers,
Financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, cash and cash

equivalents and other balances with bank. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit
risk.

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks
with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies. accordingly the Group considers that the related credit risk is low,

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default
is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.
The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables and other
receivables.

The movement in the allowance fol impairment in respect of trade and other receivables is as follows:

2022
18

14
the

The Group's exposure to customers is diversifled and one customer contributes to more than 10o/o oFoutstanding trade receivables
(including unbilled receivables) as at March 31, 2023 (two customer as at March 31,2022), Geographical concentration oftrade
receivables (including unbilled receivables) have been disclosed in segment report under note 34,

Investments
Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies,

accordingly the Group considers that the related credit risk is low.

b) LiquidlW risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are

settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Groupt approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. The Group has access to undrawn revolving credit facility at the
year ended March 31, 2023 amounting to USD 18 million (USD 18 million at the year ended March 31,2022) which could be used for
the working capital needs as and when required,

66

Particulars
Balance at the beqinning of the period

Provision for the year
Bad debts

March 31, 2023
22
o:



Private Limited
statements for year ended March 31, 2O23

Particulars

March 31,2023
Non Derivative fi nancial instruments

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities
Lease liability
Borrowings

March 31, 2022
Non Derivative fi nancial instruments

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities
Lease liability
Borrowinqs

(c) Market risk

Fractal Analytics
Notes to Consolidated financial

Maturities of fi nancial liabilities

The below table analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Undiscounted amounts
Carrying amount

(i) Currency risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - that will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily
related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exposure to market risk is a
function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currency,

The Group is exposed to currency risk on account of foreign currency transactions including recognized assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level.

Exposure to currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, is as follows:

< l2months

EUR GBP

As at Mar€h 31,2023

131

3,347

1-2Year

571
1,866

308

35

626
1,395

344
24

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Net exposure to foreign currency (assets)

> 2 Year

ioo
t07

35

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities)

Pafticularc

210
24

189

s_74lJ 507

57L
I,982

516
3,256

526
1,408

543
3,188

[]i!
Vieslen i

afld

o.

usD

3,116
I

.!

6 083

*

\o7

Othens

131



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

As at March 31,2022

Mrreh 31- 2(123

GBP

0

3!19

399

128

128

It4
(114)

+ Amount less than Rs I Million

Pafticularc

(fair valuation through profit and loss)
usD 51 4,282 26 2,010
EUR6501--

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

As at
March 31,2023

Notional amount"--: -'.- :-"' Fair value
oT contrafisj," ,'',iir""i (Rs in million)

As at
March 31, 2022

Notional amount'-':"-'.- :-"- Fair value

?l-t"jii,iT (Rs in mittion)
t tn mlllron l

i,tr'5i' 
lj

\i'i\t t

USD
- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

EUR
- Increase by 5olo
- Decrease by 5olo

GBP
- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

Others*
- Increase by 5olo

- Decrease by 5olo

USD

Rs1

3.283

)27

Pafticulars

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalentsx
Trade receivables
Net exposure to foreign curnency (assets)

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Net exposure to foreign currency (liabilities)

3_Os6

EUR

0 0

399

3.283

227

Sensitivity analysis
Any change with respect to strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies as at March 31,2023 and March
31,2022 would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in respective currencies and affected equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Paftaculars

Outstanding Derivative contracts
The Group hedges exposures to changes in foreign currenc'y. The counterparty for these contracts is a bank, Forward contracts are
valued at fair value through profit and loss,

The following lable gives details in respect of outstanding hedge contracb:

Impact on profit after tax and equity

Othels*

Exposure to intercst rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on the borrowing outstanding in the book as at March 3t,2023 pursuant to movement in

Term SOFR, The interest reset period or the amortization schedule is not fixed under this credit facility and hence the same has not
been hedged.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio offixed and variable rate loans and borrowings,

tr
qt

5
(s)

0
(0)

15
(1s)

Co.

128

2ts
(21s)

19
(1e)

5
(s)

IJ,,

.t-
l\:tcu



Private Limited
statements for year ended ltlarch 31, 2023

Change in Term

Fractal Analytics
Notes to Consolidated financial

Sensitivity analysis
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that pottion of loans and

borrowings affected, With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating 131s

borrowings, as follows:

Pafticulars
2022

- Increase by 1olo

(iil). Capital risk management

The Group aims to manage its capltal efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to
its shareholders. The capital structure is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to
meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The policl is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustaln future development and growth of its business,

Net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

March 31- 2O23

March 31, 2023

(26)
)6

3,009
(1,832)

(419)
(4,023)

(3,265)

11,029

Impact on profit after tax and equity

Borrowinqs
Less : Cash and cash equivalents
Less : Other bank balances
Less : Investment in liquid mutual funds
Net Debt (A)

Total Equity (B)

Net Gearing Ratio (A/B)

(24)

3,256
(2,t32)

(1s1)
(2,906)

(1,933)

13,634



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Nots to @nplidated finilcial statemts fq v6r ended l.larch 3r, 2023

(33) Enploye stock OptioN Schere (ES'oP)

continued employmflt with the Company. The dan is an equity settled plan. The employee @mpertion qpens for the y€r is determined on fair value basis.

For the y€rsded l,larch 31, 2OZl

Pard@bE

on

MoEmnt of Optis Granted with Weighted Arerage Exercis Pri@ (WAEP)

PardqbF
WAEP

opuons outstandlng at tlp b€glntrlng of
Year
Optons qranted durinq the y€r
Options laDsed durinq the yea
Ogtions etded/@ncelled durinq the y@r
Ootions revived durinq the Er
Options qercised durinq the year

optiss outstanding at the end of the y€r

The options g.anted under the above schme, shall v6t in graded manns ov6 a period of 1-4 ys6. Each option will entide fte particjpant to one equity share.

The weighted average lair Elu6 of the options gEnted during the y@r was Rs 1,109 (March 31, 2022 : Rs 545).
The weighted average stock prie of the options granted during the y@r ended March 31, 2023 is Rs 2,270 (l.4arch 31, 2022 :Rs 1,126).

The fair valuation of options has been done by an independst firm of Chartered A@untants on the date of grart using $e Black-5chol6 Modd,

The key assumptim in the Black-Schol6 Model for clolating fair value as on the date of grant:

545

895

'2u

426
?87

Weighted avsage rmaining @ntractual life (years) of the options base.d on the qercise pri@ :

No.ofoDflonsouLstandtnq I 10,0001 16,3001 119,6021 32.5001 [07.:001 283.t251 r,7s4,3.101 205,9481 68,366

weighredavdag€rmainingcontractuailife I - I z.+ql e.rsl o.orl e.r+l e.zrl e.s+l g.zql g.tz-ttttttttt
c- where gffij* daE is extended.

PartidlrB ESOP
2022-23

ESOP
20.21-22

Risk Fre Rate
Option tife (Ba*d on simplified Average MeElod)

Expeded Volatility

ExD€ded Growth in Divideod

5.45 Vo - 9.19 o/o

5 to 7 )€ats
9-76%

- 63-91 o/o

5,45 0h - 9.r9 0/o

5to7y€E
9.76 9o

- 63.91Vo

T-1 T-5 T

7.6G4.47 7.54 6 249.16 101.93 to 219.35 101.43 to 478.27 216.15 to 283.48 203,56 to 270,66 t97-58-267.45 104.79 to 231.07 136.31 - 382.58 170.59 to 1663.75 654.23 to

Itlc WAEP

2,456374

26L,406
(234,8101

(55,737"

3,000
(232,8561

2t597,?4L

2,120
1,026
u6
a0
506
952

787 1,970,o74

(59,939)
1S56F7a

t,873,514
(292,27s)



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Not€ to Con$lidated financial statements for y@r ended March 3L. 2023

(b) Employe Stock Option Plin - Management incentiye plan

for the y@r has ben dettrmined on fair value basis.

For the y€r ended l.larch 31, 2023

Pa.ticulaF
Peformance based

No. of Options gEnted
Exercif Price

MoYement of Options Gmnted with

ParticulaF

at
Y€T
ODtjons qranted durinq the v€r
Options lags€d durinq the y€r
Ootions stded/@ncelled durinq the y€r
Ootions qercised durinq the ysr
Optiore outstanding at the end of

The options granted under the above Schere, shall vest in gEded mnner over a penod of 14 y€6, Each option will entitle the participant to one equity share.

The weiqhted averaqe fair valus of the ootions qranted durinq the y€r was Rs 1,351 (March3!,2022i 770).
The weiqhted averaqe stock Dric of the ootions qranted durinq the year ended March 31, 2023 is Rs 2,.270 (March 31,2022 i L,459\.

The fair valuaEon of oDtion has ben done bv an independent firm of Chartercd Accountants on the date of qcnt usinq the Binomial Model.

1,056
2,270

Weiohted averaoe reminino contEctual life (vears) of the oDtions based on the qerds Drice :

Exerci* Price I U6 I 2.270
No. of oDtions outstandinq
Weighted avecae remining @ntractual I I

tife ( in v€6) | 8.201 8.99

The key assumptions for Binomial Model for Glculating fair value as on BE date of gBnt:

MSOP
ParticulaB

Risk Fre Rate

Option Life
(Ba*d on SimDlified Ave€qe Method)
Expsted Volatility

5.75o/o lo 6.!60/o
5 y€E

I9.9ao/o -34.05o/o

GroMh in Dividend

(c) The sp€n* recognis€d for employe sryi(s Geived during the y€r b shown in the following table:
(in RuDes mjllio]1l

ParticulaF
Y€r ended Y€r ended

March 31.2023 March 31,2022
Expen$ arising from equity-setded share-
based payment tran$ctions

- forDarent6ompanv f,573 189
- for subsidiaru comBnis* L4 30

Total 1,5a7 219
Bbck-shols model as per the terms of the respective plans.

Time Ba*d Perfomane based Time based

g6-2.270
1007.54 to 1-5q0-37

Pefomen.- bred
Ae tt Mrnh 31- 2023 As at Mafth 31- 2022

WAFD WAF9 WAFD

1 066 60?

1,05t1s6

53,016
(27,940)
(19,630)

1-O55

1,054

1,580
1,702
L,582

a.a2q.a72

e13t688

106,184
(56,0601

(55,0401

a-n4

L054

r,702
r,787

1-055 186

1,056,316
(1,160)

1,056

1_064 2-13s,6a4

2,138,028
(2,340)

MSOP

t9.98o/o -39.760/o

5 years
ta 7.130/o



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolldated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(34) Segment reporting

Business segment
The Group's business segments are reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Group. The Group's businesses are as

under:

1) Fractal.ai segment provides advanced analytics services that helps companies leverage data driven insights in taking informed decisions.

2) Fractal alpha segment is focused on incubated and acquired products including Crux intelligence, Qure.ai, Senseforth.ai, Asper.ai,

Analytics Vidya, Theremin and Eugiene.

These segments are determined based on the internal organisation and management structure of the Parent and its system of internal
financial reporting. The Chief executive officer of the Group has been identified as Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who allocates the
resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed for the above segment,

Geographical segment
The Group's operations are majorly based in America, Europe and APAC and Others.

Segment accounting policies

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Group. In addibon, the following specific accounting policies have

been followed for segment reporting :

i) Segment revenue includes income directly identifiable with the segments.

ii) Operating income is derived after deducting employee related expenses and other expenses of respecitve segments

iii) Expenses and Incomes that are directly identifiable with the segments are considered for determining the segment result. Expenses and

Income which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments and which relate to the operating activities of the segment but
are impracticable to allocate to the segment, are included under "Unallocated",

vi) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable corporate assets and liabilities
represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Summarised segment information for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 202a is as follows:
(in Rupees million)

Total

(104)

(t,474)
5,840
(4s3)

me

Fractal.alpha Total

(83) t2,953

(83s)
L87

(139)

597

(s61)
15
(1)

(17)\

(3ss)
58

(137)
()41

22.447

4,704
380

7,880
s,699

55

6,968
2,5r2

100

573

Capital Employed
Fractal.ai
Fractal alpha

March m23

Particulars

Revenue from operations

unallocat€d

Operating incomex
Other income/(expense)
Finance cost

(1.6a4'l

12,439

bs

2022

Fractal.ai

ment nesults

tzl
253
(2e)

(376\

Fractal,alpha

1q,548

net

March

Particulars

Operating incomex
Other income
Finance cost

Segment Asset
Fractal.ai
Fractal alpha

40s

Fractal.ai

(1,s14)
(10)
(1)

(159)

Segment Liabilities
Fractal.ai
Fractal alpha
unallocated

one

81
t74

(1)
(?7\\

one

Intersegment

9red

(80)
5,597
(423)
(246\

eliminati6n

4.444

Unallocated

12,585
6,078
3,824

19,854

Intersegment
elimination

t0,2&
3,086

3,296



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
l{otes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Geographical disclosure
Geoqraphical revenue is allocated based on the location of tie customer. Information regarding geographical revenue is as follows

As at
Mar€h 31, 2022

13,339
3,467
3.048

2,472

Geographical non-current assets (property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwilL other intangible assets, income
tax asseb and other non current assets) are allocated based on the location of the assets

lnformation regading geographacal non-cun€nt assets is as follows:

Countrlt
As at

llarch 31" 2022

3,919
1,840

33

Disclosure of top customer having sales more than 10 o/o of the total revenues
(in RuDees million)

As at
March 3L 2022

LSo/o

70/"
130/o

L

Country

Europe

Customer

As at
March 31, 2023

Customer

As at
March 31, 2023

APAC & Others

cd

&

*

*

As at
Marth 31,2023

2,320



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31' 2023

(35) BusinessCombination

(a) Acquisition of Asper.ai Group (Formerly known as Samya.ai)

During the previous year, the Group on June 15, 2021 (acquisition date) acquired L00 o/o of outstanding shares of Asper.ai

Technologies Private Limited and Asper.ai Inc (Asper.ai) (referred to as 'Asper.ai Group') resulting in full control of the entities.
The Group had acquired controlling stake for a cash consideration of Rs 377 million (USD 5.12 million) and, deferred
compensation of Rs 42 million (USD 568K) to be paid to the founder of Asper.ai Inc at specified intervals over next twenty four
months from the date of acquisition,

Asper.ai is a CPGR focused RGM (Revenue Growth Management) AI Company. Asper,ai complements Group's Consumer Product
Goods (CPG) capabilities, it utilizes probabilistic machine learning and reinforcement learning approaches together with deep

domain expertise to help CPG companies recapture revenue growth potential. Asper,ai's focus on AI based RGM platform and
product add adjacencies to Fractal's offerings and is the primary factor that underscore the strategic rationale for this transaction

The Group had carried out purchase price allocation from an independent valuer as at the date of acquisition and recognised
identifiable intangible assets at fair values. The following table summarises the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed recognised at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date.

Ru
Acquiree's
carrying
amount

2L4

Purchase
price

3
2

82
t2

r37
B

244

23

2

3
1

1

30

tL2

tt2

Fair value
adjustment

Consideration paid (D)*

3

2
L94

L2
137

B

356

23

2
3
1

1

23

53
23
23

89 303

418

115

**Goodwill recognised is not deductible for income tax purposes

ll

Intangible assets Rupees
Million

Useful life

Client relationships 15 3 Years
Internally generated intangible assets 96 3 Years
Total 112

The revenue and loss after tax included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss since date of acquisition upto March 31,
2022 contributed by Samay.ai is Rs 35 million and Rs B0 million.

Had Samya.AI been consolidated from April 01, 2021 the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,
2022 would have included revenue of Rs 45 million and loss after tax of Rs 125 million.

Total fair value of Net assets acquired as on date
of acquisition (C=(A-B))

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other assets
Total assets (A)

Liabilities
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability on intangible assets
Total liabilities (B)



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2O23

(b) Acquisition of Sensefofth.ai Group
During the previous year, on August 31, 2021 (acquisition date) the Group acquired 1000/o of outstanding shares of Sensefofth AI
Research Private Limited and Senseforth Inc. (Senseforth,Al) (referred to as'Senseforth.ai Group'), resulting in full control ofthe
entities. The Group had acquired controlling stake in Senseforth,AI for a cash consideration of Rs 478 million by entering into
share transfer agreement.

Senseforth.AlhadaConversational AlplatformandotherProductsformingpartoftheconversational Alplatform thathelp
increase revenue, enhance operational efflciency and reduce suppoft costs for its customers. Senseforth.Al focus on AI based
platform and product add adjacencies to Groups offerings and is the primary factor that underscore the strategic rationale for this
transaction. The work to date validates the differentiated positioning that the combined entity would enjoy.

The Group had carried out purchase price allocation from an independent valuer as at the date of acquisition and recognised
identifiable intangible assets at fair values. The following table summarises the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date,

priceFair value
adjustment

150

478

328

Acquiree's
carrying
amounf

Rupees in
Useful life

xGoodwill recognised is not deductible for income tax purposes
*xdenotes amount less than Rs 1 million

44 10 Years
49 5 Years

Total 93

The revenue and loss after tax included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 since
date of acquisition contributed by Senseforth.ai is Rs 61 million and Rs 31 million.

Had Senseforth.ai been consolidated from April 0I,2027 the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year
ended March 3I,2022 would have included revenue of Rs 107 million and loss after tax of Rs 91 million.

93

inM

Intangible assets

Internally generated intanqible assets

0

9
22

34
2

B

75

5

0
1

3

(1)
I

67

Consideration paid (D)

ll

*

Pafticulars

Property plant and equipment**
Intangible assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other assets
Total assets (A)

Liabilities
Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilitiesx*
Other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities (B)

Total fair value of Net assets acquired as on date
of acquisition (C=(A-B))

0
L02

22
34

2

B

168

5

0
1

3

9
18

Cetlt|al

93

10
10

83

& Co

*
YJe$ern

ard



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

(c) Acquisition of Neal Analytics Group
Duringthepreviousyear,onDecember29,202l(acquisitiondate)theGroupacquiredl00%of Neal AnalyticsLLC andNeal
Analwcs Private Limited (referred to as 'Neal Analytics Group') . The Group had acquired controlling stake in Neal for a cash
consideration of Rs 2,984 million (USD 40 million) by entering into share transfer agreement.

Neal has expertise and capabilities across each ofAzure, Dynamics 365 and Microsoft 355 that helps increase revenue and
provide high quality of services to its existing customers,

The Group has carried out purchase price allocation from an independent valuer as at the date ofacquisition and recognise6
identifiable intangible asseb at fair values. The following table summarises the amounts of the asseb acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date.

744

744

price

33
40

270

1B

301

L20

Fair value
adjustment

0
3B

247
120

3

12

1

42L

Goodwill

Consideration paid (D)*

0
38

744
247
t20

3
t2

1

1,165

33
40

2r0

18

301

864

744

Total fair value of Net assets acquired as on date
of acquisition (C=(A-B))

2,984

*Includes consideration amount payable of Rs 126 million and is disclosed in other current financial liabilities.
**Goodwill recognised is not deductible for income tax purposes.
***denotes amount less than Rs 1 million

Intangible assets

120

Rupees Million Useful life

Total 744

The revenue and profit after tax included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 since
date of acquisition contributed by Neal Analytics is Rs 4BB million and Rs 46 million.

Had Neal been consolidated from April 0L, 202L the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 3L, 2022
would have included revenue of Rs 1,840 million and profit of Rs 283 million.

Acquiree's
carrying
amount

Particulars

Assets
Propefty, plant and equipment+**
Right of use assets
Intangible assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current asseb
Deferred tax assets
Total assets (A)

Liabilities
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities
Total liabilities (B)



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

(d) Acquisition of Analytics Vidhya Educon Private Limited
During the previous year, on November 22, 2021 (acquisition date) the Group acquired 55,92 o/o of outstanding ordinary shares of
Analytics Vidhya Educon Private Limited ("Analytics Vidhya"), The Group has paid cash consideration of Rs 408 million (USD 5.52
million) by entering into share transfer agreement,

Analytics Vidhya is a platform for continuous upskilling and hiring in the Industry. By owning a controlling stake in Analytics
Vidhya, the Group aims to become a leading community knowledge portal, launch top industry focused certificate programmes
and become the largest pool of data tech candidates and jobs.

The Group has carried out purchase price allocation from an independent valuer as at the date of acquisition and recognised
identifiable intangible assets at fair values. The following table summarises the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date, as well as the fair value at the acquisition date,

M

Fair value
adjustment

Purchase
price

132

Acquiree's
carrying
amount

227
L79

408

181
is not deductible for income tax purposes

Consideration paid (E)

Rupees
Million Useful life

Developed Content 102 10 Years
Brand 30 5 Years

The revenue and profit after tax included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 since
date of acquisition contributed by Analytics Vidhya is Rs 36 million and Rs 1 million.

Rs

x*denotes amount less than Rs 1 million

Intangible assets

Had Analytics Vidhya been consolidated from April 01, 2021 the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year
ended year ended March 3L,2022 would have included revenue of Rs 95 million and profit after tax of Rs 5 million.

L32
3

9

275
1

7
0

295

10
1

6
4

2L

274

3

132
9

275
1

7

0
427

10
I
6
4

2t

406

Group's Share in Analytics Vidhya (D )
Fair value of Non controlling interests

55.92o/o
44.08o/o

*

Pafticularc

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other asseG
Deferred tax assetsxx
Total assets (A)

tiabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total liabilities (B)

Total fair value of Net assets acquired as on date
of acquisation (C=(A-B))

& Co

*
l{ot

132

$tiltfi



subsidiaries

Fracrnl Analytjcs Inc, usA
Fractal Private Llmited, Sinqapore

Cuddle Artificial Intelligence Private Limited*

Qure.ai Technologies Private Limited*
(up to Aprll 08, 2022)
Final l'4ile Consultants Private Limited
Theremin AI soluuons Private Limitedi
Eugenie Technologies Private Limited

Asp€r,AI Technologies Private Limited
(Formedy known as Samya.al Technologies Private Limited
(w.e.f June 11, 2021)

Senseforth AI Research Private Limit€d

(w.e.fAugust ?7,202!)
Analytics Vidya Educon Private Limited
(w.e.f November ZZ, Z02l')

Neal Analytics Services Private Limited
(w.e.f December 24, 2021)
Fractal Alpha Private Limited
(w.e.f March 3, 2022)

(b) subsidiaries indirecdv h€ld
Fractal Anawcs UK Limited
Fractal AnaMics (SwiEerland) GmbH
Fractal Anawcs (Canada) Inc,
Fractal AnaVsis Germany GmbH (Germany)
Fractal AnaWcs Netherland B,V (Nethedands)
cuddle,ai Inc.*
4i Consultinq Inc.
Limited Liability Company Symphony (Ukrdine)
Final l'4ile @nsultinq LLC

Fractal Anahrtics Sweden AB
Fractal AnaWcs (Shanqhai) Limited

Fractal Anawcs Malaysia SDN BHD

Qure.ai Inc*
(uD to April 08,2022)
Qure.ai Technologies Limited, UKx
(up to April 08,2022)
Fractal Anawcs Australia Pty. Ltd
Theremin l.4ultistrateqy Fund LLP

Asper.AI Limited
(Formerly known as Samya.AI Limited
(w.e.fJune 15, 2021)
Asper.AI Inc
(Formerly known as Samya,AI Inc
(w.e,fJune 15, 2021)
Sensefodfi AI Research Inc (w.e.f August 31, 2021)
Euqiene Inc. (w,e.f December 16,202L)
Neal Analytics LLC (w.e.f December 37,2021\
Fractal Anawcs Fz LLC (w.e.f September 02, 2022)
Fractal Forlenuers, hc (w.e,f March 03,2022)

;h.^.rhar;-h

United StaGs of America
Sinqapore
Indla

India

The Group is enagaged in principal activity of Analytics, Machine Leaming and Artificial Intelligence

xBased on equiw holding excluding dilution due to convertible instruments and employee stock option pool ofsubsidiaries companies.

As at
M*rh ?l )ll)?

united Kingdom
SwiEerland
Canada
Germany
Netherlands

United States of America
United StaGs of America
Ukraine

United States of America
Sweden
China
Malaysia

United States of America

India

India

India

India

India

100,000/o

100.000/o

98.150/o

at

100,000/o

97,3Qo/o

100,000/o

100.00%
100.007o

98.310/o

Country of

India
India
India

!00.000/o

100,000/o

55.92o/o

100,000/o

100,000/o

94.587o
100,00o/o

97,30o/o

100.00o/o

100.00Y0

100.000/o

55.97o/o

100.007o

100.00o/o

United Kingdom

Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements fol year ended March 31, 2023

(36) Particulars of subsidiaries considered in the pr€paration of the consolidated financial statements:

Australia
hdia

United Kingdom

lJnited States of America

United States of America
tJnited States of America
united States of America

United Arab Emirates
United States of America

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

98.150/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.00o/o

100,000/o

100.00o/o

97,300/o

100.0090
100,00Y0
100.00%
100,00o/o

100.00o/o

98,31o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100.00o/o

100,00o/o

100,00o/o

94,580/o

94.58o/o

100.0090
97,300/o

100.00o/o

100.007o
100.00o/o

100.000/o

100.00%
100.00%
100.00o/o

100,000/o

94.760/o

100.000/o

100.000/o

100.00%
100.000/o

100.00o/o





Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31' 2023

For year ended March 31, 2022

Name of the subsidiaries

Fractal

Theremin AI Solutions

Fractal Private Limited

Neal

Fractal
Fractal

GmbH

UK

Total

N€t Assets i.e Total
Assets minus Total Share In Profit or Loss Share In OcI

Amount
As o/o of

Consolidated
Drnfil 6r I ncc

Amount
As o/o of

Consolidated
Prnfil dr I nes

As o/o of
Consolidated

Net Assets
Amount

As o/o of
Consolidated
Pmfit or Loss

'144o/a 13.821 2o/o 126) -34o/o (28) 4o/a

1 64q 4Ro/" -5?o/" 540k160/o

Oo/" j Oo/" Oo/A3o/o 255
1Ao/" ()61\ )o/" 1 190/.-5o/o (468)

60/o 539 17o/a (242\ Oo/o (0) t7o/a

Oo/a 5 'lo/o (1) Oo/o

1 o/a 2o/n (26\ Oo/o (0) 2o/a

-10/" 1o/a 1 3o/a

f}o/" 0 0,o/" Oo/aOo/o 0
-10/" 13 oo/" o -10Lo/o 85

Oo/o 31 Oo/a (1) (3) 0o/o

275 Oo/o 1 lo/o 0 Oo/a

1 0/" 50 Oo/" 6 Oo/" 0 Oo/.

-40/62o/o 175 -4o/o 54 0o/o

-10/"-40r (424\ -lo/o i5 Oo/.

)o/ 183 6o/a (92) Oo/t 7o/o

)o/, 147 )o/" Oo/" 20k
oo/" Oo/nooh 4 0o/o

3q t\o/"lo/, t75 '3o/"
Oo/o t4 Oo/o 0 Oo/o

Oo/o Oo/o (2) Oo/o Oo/a

io/" Oo/n 2 0o/o Oo/o

flo/" -1o/n Oo/o 'Io/a
no/^ 4 oo/" Oo/" ook

17 io/n -lo/aOo/o 13 -Lo/o
()\ no/"Oo/o 1 Oo/o

no/"Oo/a 25 Oo/o 2 Oo/o

no/" Oo/" 2 ook Oo/c

1 o/" r9l Oo/o 7o/c-2o/o
oo/" 1 Oo/a Oo/cIo/o 52

oo/Oo/o 5 Oo/o 2 0o/o

oo/11 ook lo/a
Oo/n 2o/a (28) Oo/o 2o/c

ook Oo/rOo/o

-89o/o 98o/oA72o/o 16.442 87o/o
l Rqo/. 1\4 1o/o f14)-87o/n (8.311) llo/a (168)

(\7\ ook 0 lo/o!5o/o

lOOo/o 9.sao lOOo/o (1.4671 lOOo/o 81 a00o/o

Income

Amount

6

2
10

17

2

IiUMBAI.fi)

*Amount appearing as zero denotes amount less than Rs 1 million



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 3I,2023

(38) Investment in associate
Qure.ai Technologies Private Limited ('Qure.ai') incorporated in India is building machine learning algorithms which can
automatically interpret radiology images such as MRIs, CT Scans and X-rays. Its solutions help radiologists improve the
accuracy of their reporting. It also improves radiologists' productivity by automating the easy tasks and allowing them to
focus on the difficult ones, thus improving quality of care,

During the year, Qure.ai' has sought investment from external investors resulting in Group's deemed loss of control in

Qure.ai. Consequently, post this transaction, the Group has assessed that it has significant influence over Qure.ai and
has considered it as associate company with effect from date of transaction i.e. April 08,2022. For the administrative
convenience, deemed loss of control and significant influence thereafter is considered with effect from April 0L, 2022.

Pursuant to this change in relationship, the Group has derecognised all the assets and liabilities as at April 0t, 2022 and
has recorded the investment in Qure,ai at fair value as at April 0I,2022. This has resulted in gain of Rs 5,410 million
which have been recorded under exceptional items and deferred tax liability there on in statement of Profit and loss for
the year ended March 3L,2023. The Group holds 37.23o/o in Qure.ai on fully diluted basis as at March 3I, 2023.

(in Rupees million)

(a) Movement of investment in associates
As at

March 31-,2023
Deemed cost of investment 4,769
Share of loss for the year (Refer note c below) (290)
Aggregate carrying amount of investment 41479

(b) Summary of Balance sheet As at

Current assets 3,312
Non current liabilities (19)
Current liabilities

(c) 
Summary of Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended
March 3L,2023

Revenue from operations and other income
Total expenses
Net loss before tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Group's share of loss in associate
Group's share of Other comprehensive income in associate
Group's share of Total comprehensive income in associate

913
1,691
(778)
(776)
(2e1)

1

(290)



Weiqhted averase number of equiw shares (in nos)
Adjustment for calculatlon of diluted EPS (in nos)
weiqhted aveEqe number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (ln nos)
Earninqs per share (in Rs.):
- gasic

- Diluted
Face value Der equitv share (Rs.)

Options granted to employees under the stock option plan are considered to be potenual equity shares. They have been included in the detelmination of diluted
earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive. ln view of loss6 during the previous year ended March 31, 2022, the opuons are anti-dilutive'
Accordingly, there is no varlation between basic and dilutive earnings per share.

Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

(39) Earninqs per sharc

Pe rticulars

(4{t) Commitments and continEent liabilities

Particuldr

*The Group believes that these claims are not tenable and hence no provision has been made in this regard

(41) Corporate social responsibility

As at
March 31,2023

As at
March 31,2023

Year ended
Harch 31,2022

27,457,3ts
2,103,0 15

29,s60,330

66.95
62.07

1.00

Year ended
March 3t 2023

2,030
30,320,3s6

2,382,100
32,702,4s6

Pa rticula r

The amount during the year has been spent towards educaton of underprivileged children and teachers, self-reliant rural society assured of food security, gender
equity, low child morblity etc,

(42) Other Statutory Informauon
(i) The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) dlrectly or indhffdy lend or lnvest in other persons or entites identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provlde any quarante. sffuriw or the like to or on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(ii) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with fte undeFbnding (whetler recorded in
writing or othemise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulumate

Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guardntee, securlty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

As at
March 31, 2O22

6

9

6
3

(53.43)
(s3.43)

1.00

6

6

Unused Revolving credit facility from lenders
Guarantee given to financial institution on behalf of subsidiary
Capital commiUnents

(a) Contnqent liabiliti€s
Claims against the Grcup not acknowledged as debt:

As at
March 31, 2022

&

*
Cenlnl

L,479
s,693

19

Norlh

Nesco

98

1,3s4
s,211

103

Corporate social rcsponsibiliw expenditure

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013
Amount spent durinq the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset
(ii) PurDoses other than (i) above
(iii) natue of CSR activities

i)Contribution to Public Trust
ii)Contribution to Charitable Trust

MUMBAI-63

*

-lNescx

96

*



Fractal Analytics Private Limited
Nobs to Consolidahd financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023

(431 5uS5gqusnt evenb after March 3t,2023:
(a) Subsequent to year-end, Group Company Cuddle Artificial Intelllgence Private Limlted ("Cuddle") vide board resolution dated Aprll 26,2023 has proposed to

employees in relation to the product by means of a business transfer from the Cuddle to Fractal Analytics Prlvate Llmited, as a going concern by way of slump sale.
Also, based on the financial position ofthe Cuddle, the Company and other Group Company has given approval towards walver of outstanding borrowlngs and
payables vide board resolution dated April 26,2023,

(b) Subsequent to year-end, Group Company Neal Analytlcs Servlces Prlvate Limited ("Neal") vide board resolutlon dated Aprll 26, 2023 has proposed to transfer the
assets, liabilities, regulatory approvals, permib, contracts and employees of the Neal to Fractal Analytics Prlvate Limlted, as a going concern by way of slump sale.

(c) Subsequent to year-end, Flnal Mile Consultants Prlvate Limited ("Final Mile") vlde board resolution dated May 26,2023 has proposed to transfer tle assets,
llablllties, regulatory approvals, permits, contracts and employees of the Final mile to Fractal Analytlcs Private Limited, as a going concern by way of dump sale.

(44) The financlal statemenb were authorlsed for lssue by the Parent's Board of directors on July 19, 2023.

(45) Prevlous year figures have been regrouped/ reclasslfied to conflrm to cunent year presentation.

As per our report of even date aRached

FoTBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fkm's Reqlstration Number: 101248WW-100022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fractal Anal*ics Private Limated
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